
 Page 1 

 
 

NOTICE 
OF A 

  JOINT MEETING OF THE  
TOWN OF CAREFREE  

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AND THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
ADVISORY BOARD 

 

WHEN:  MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2023  

WHERE:  33 EASY STREET 

TIME:  5:00 P.M. 

LIVESTREAM: CAREFREE YOUTUBE CHANNEL:  Town of Carefree - YouTube 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the Economic Development Advisory Board of the Town of Carefree, Arizona 
and to the public, that the members of the Commission/Board will hold a public hearing and 
meeting open to the public.   

THE AGENDA FOR THE MEETING IS AS FOLLOWS: 
CALL TO ORDER, SILENT ROLL CALL and PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

ITEM #1 APPROVAL of PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING MINUTES dated 
FEBRUARY 13, 2023. 

ITEM #2 PUBLIC HEARING to be held to consider proposed text amendment to the Town 
of Carefree Zoning Ordinance 10th Publication and to receive comments from the 
public.  The Text Amendment, included under Case #22-21-TA, proposes to 
modify Article II. Rules and Definitions, Section 2.02 Definitions in order to align 
with and support the recently passed short-term rental regulations in the Carefree, 
Arizona code of Ordinances (Town Code).   

This is a public hearing and comments from the public will be taken. 

ITEM #3 REVIEW and RECOMMENDATION of the 2023-24 Economic Development 
Work Plan 

ITEM #3 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

ITEM #4 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 



 Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Samantha Gesell 
_________________________________ 
SAMANTHA GESELL, PLANNING CLERK 
POSTED March 08, 2023. 

 
 FOR SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS 
Please contact the Planning Clerk, 8 Sundial Circle  (PO Box 740), Carefree, AZ 85377; 
(480) 488-3686, at least three working days prior to the meeting if you require special 
accommodations due to a disability.  

 

 

Find more information and subscribe: 
 
info@carefree.org 
www.carefree.org 
  

 
 
  https://carefree.org/subscribe  
  
Look for us on Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter 



Page 1 of 5 

NOTICE 
OF A 

JOINT MEETING  
TOWN OF CAREFREE  

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND THE 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

DRAFT MINUTES 

WHEN: MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023 

WHERE: CAREFREE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
33 EASY STREET, CAREFREE, AZ 85377 

LIVESTREAM: CAREFREE YOUTUBE CHANNEL:  rtmp://a.rtmp.youtube.com/live2 

TIME:  5:00 P.M. 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 

Chairperson Tom Cross None 
Peter Burns 
Karen Dahlman 
Susie Dymoke  
Ralph Ferro 
Mary Roberts 
Sharon Smith 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Planning Director, Stacey Bridge-Denzak; Economic Development Director, Steve Prokopek; Planning 
Clerk, Samantha Gesell. 

Chairperson Cross called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the group in the pledge of allegiance. 

ITEM #1 Introduction of new Planning and Zoning Commissioners, Karen Dahlman, Susie Dymoke, 
Mary Roberts, and Sharon Smith. Appointment of the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
Vice Chairperson. 

Commissioner Burns MOVED TO APPOINT Mary Roberts to fill the seat of the Planning and Zoning 
Vice Chairperson.  SECONDED by Commissioner Dymoke.  CARRIED, 7-0. 

VOTING MEMBER  AYE/NAY 
Chaiperson Tom Cross  Aye 
Commissioner Peter Burns Aye 
Commissioner Dahlman  Aye 
Commissioner Dymoke  Aye 
Commissioner Ferro  Aye 
Commissioner Roberts  Aye 
Commissioner Smith  Aye 



Page 2 of 5 

ITEM #2 APPROVAL of the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes dated December 
12, 2022.  APPROVAL of the Development Review Board meeting minutes dated 
October 17, 2022.  APPROVAL of the Board of Adjustment meeting minutes dated June 
13, 2022. 

Commissioner Burns MOVED TO APPROVE Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes dated 
December 12, 2022, Development Review Board meeting minutes dated October 17, 2022 and Board of 
Adjustment meeting minutes dated June 13, 2022.  SECONDED by Commissioner Ferro.  CARRIED, 7-
0. 

VOTING MEMBER  AYE/NAY 
Chaiperson Tom Cross   Aye 
Vice Chairperson Roberts Aye 
Commissioner Peter Burns Aye 
Commissioner Dahlman  Aye 
Commissioner Dymoke  Aye 
Commissioner Ferro  Aye 
Commissioner Smith  Aye 

ITEM #3 DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION on a request for: 

CASE #: 20-18-MS 

APPLICANT: 

OWNER: 

Mr. Victor Sidy 
Victor Sidy Architect 
2300 E. Utopia Road 
Phoenix, AZ 85024 

Mrs. Robyn Laukien & Mr. Christopher Park 
12 Smith Hill Rd. 
Lincoln, MA 

CASE LOCATION: 6352 E. Arroyo Rd. 
Carefree, AZ 85377 
Maricopa County Tax Parcel # 211-28-129A 

ZONING: Rural-70 Single Family Residential 
70,000 square feet minimum lot size 

REQUEST: Requesting approval of a single-family residence in the Mountainside 
Zoning District overlay. 

Vice Chairperson Roberts MOVED TO APPROVE the request for approval of a single-family residence 
in the Mountainside Zoning District overlay with the following conditions:  

EXHIBIT “A” 
CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL 



Page 3 of 5 

DRB Case #20-18-MS  
6352 East Arroyo Road, Carefree 

Maricopa County Tax Parcel #211-28-129A 

1. All plans submitted to the Building Department for a building permit shall be consistent with the
plans associated with this application and attached to this report as well as the conditions approved
by the Development Review Board on February 13, 2023.

2. The granting of this Mountainside application shall be null and void if the building permit is not
issued within one (1) year of approval.

3. The address marker shall comply with Article VIII, Section 8.03 (4) including a maximum height
of 3 feet above finished grade and maximum size of 4 square feet.

4. The development requires sewer service by Liberty Utilities (Black Mountain Sewer Corporation);
it may not be an on-site septic system.  Extension of the existing service shall be the sole
responsibility of the property owner.  Any on-site disturbance will require revegetation approved
by the Development Review Board.

5. All retaining walls and/or site walls shall be designed consistent with the plans associated with this
application and attached to this report, and according to Section 10.06 Walls and Fences of the
Carefree Zoning Ordinance.  No wall shall extend more than 6” above the top of a retaining wall.
Open railing is permitted.

6. Driveway grading shall be designed consistent with the plans associated with this application and
attached to this report and according to Section 10.06 Site Disturbance and Driveways of the
Carefree Zoning Ordinance.

7. Exterior lighting shall meet all provisions of Article IX, Section 9.12.

8. Landscaping shall meet all provisions of Article IX, Section 9.13.

SECONDED by Commissioner Smith.  CARRIED, 7-0. 
VOTING MEMBER  AYE/NAY 
Chaiperson Tom Cross  Aye 
Vice Chairperson Roberts Aye 
Commissioner Peter Burns Aye 
Commissioner Dahlman  Aye 
Commissioner Dymoke  Aye 
Commissioner Ferro  Aye 
Commissioner Smith  Aye 

ITEM 4. DISCUSSION and POSSIBLE ACTION on a request for: 

CASE #: 21-17-MS 

APPLICANT: Mr. Andrey Ayrapetov 
34101 N. 23rd Dr. 
Phoenix, AZ  

CASE LOCATION: 35252 North 66th Place 
Carefree, AZ 
Maricopa County Tax Parcel # 216-32-116 



Page 4 of 5 

ZONING: Rural-70 Single Family Residential 
70,000 square feet minimum lot size 

REQUEST: Requesting approval of a development plan for a single-family residence 
in the Mountainside Zoning District overlay. 

Commissioner Burns MOVED TO APPROVE the request for approval of a development plan for 
a single-family residence in the Mountainside Zoning District overlay with the following conditions: 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL 

DRB Case #21-17-MS  
35252 North 66th Place, Carefree 

Maricopa County Tax Parcel #216-32-116 

1. All plans submitted to the Building Department for a building permit shall be consistent with the
plans associated with this application and attached to this report as well as the conditions approved
by the Development Review Board on February 13, 2023.

2. The granting of this Mountainside application shall be null and void if the building permit is not
issued within one (1) year of approval.

3. Staff shall work with the project’s civil engineer to find an equitable solution to the proposed
driveway condition that meets the intent of the Zoning Ordinance and the needs of the property
owner.  If staff and the owner cannot agree, the item will be brought back to the Development
Review Board.

4. Written approval from both the HOA and Maricopa County Environmental Services is required at
the time of the building permit submittal regarding the community septic system.

5. All retaining walls and/or site walls shall be designed consistent with the plans associated with this
application and attached to this report, and according to Section 10.06 Walls and Fences of the
Carefree Zoning Ordinance.

6. Exterior lighting shall meet all provisions of Article IX, Section 9.12.

7. Landscaping shall meet all provisions of Article IX, Section 9.13.

SECONDED by Vice Chairperson Roberts.  CARRIED, 7-0. 

VOTING MEMBER  AYE/NAY 
Chaiperson Tom Cross  Aye 
Vice Chairperson Roberts Aye 
Commissioner Peter Burns Aye 
Commissioner Dahlman  Aye 
Commissioner Dymoke  Aye 
Commissioner Ferro  Aye 
Commissioner Smith  Aye 

ITEM #5 A presentation and discussion with Steve Prokopek, Economic Development Director, 
explaining the Planning and Zoning Commission’s role as the Economic Development 
Advisory Board. 

DISCUSSION ONLY. 

ITEM #6 Announcements 

There were no announcements. 



Page 5 of 5 

ITEM #7 Adjournment 

Commissioner Burns MOVED TO ADJOURN the meeting at 5:55 p.m.  SECONDED by 
Commissioner Ferro.  CARRIED, 7-0. 
VOTING MEMBER  AYE/NAY 
Chaiperson Tom Cross  Aye 
Vice Chairperson Roberts Aye 
Commissioner Peter Burns Aye 
Commissioner Dahlman  Aye 
Commissioner Dymoke  Aye 
Commissioner Ferro  Aye 
Commissioner Smith  Aye 

Dated this 14th day of February 2023. 

TOWN OF CAREFREE 

Samantha Gesell 
BY: ____________________________ 
Samantha Gesell, Planning Clerk 



P&Z Commission Mtg. 3-13-23    Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT – PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION  
 
MEETING DATE: March 13, 2023 Agenda Item #:  2 
 

SUBJECT: 

Text Amendment, Case #21-16-TA:  
Public hearing, discussion and possible action regarding proposed modifications to the 
Town of Carefree Zoning Ordinance 10th Publication.  The Text Amendment proposes to 
modify Article II. Rules and Definitions, Section 2.02 Definitions in order to align with and 
support the recently passed short-term rental regulations in the Carefree, Arizona Code 
of Ordinances (Town Code).  This is a public hearing and comments from the public will 
be taken. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

▪ Exhibit A:  Article II. Rules and Definitions, Section 2.02 Definitions  
▪ Exhibit B:  Ordinance 2022-03, Chapter 6 Offenses, Article 6-8 Short-Term Rentals 

and Vacation Rentals 
 

SUMMARY: 

On February 7, 2023, Town Council passed new regulations related to short term 
rentals/vacation rentals.  Back in July of 2022, SB 1168 was passed allowing local 
governments to require short-term rentals to obtain and maintain a local regulatory permit 
or license, which can only be denied and/or suspended for limited reasons. Provisions 
relating to neighborhood notification, liability insurance, public health and safety, and sex 
offender background checks were also included. In essence, these changes now provide 
tools for local governments to hold "bad actors" accountable for their actions. Ordinance 
2022-03 reflects the new authority granted to cities and towns under state law.  It aligns 
with many other community’s regulations as well. 
 
In support of 2022-03, language in the Zoning Ordinance needs to be amended in order 
to clarify occupancy in these rental units.  The new text specifies the legal occupancy of 
a unit, similar to a family; however, it is important to keep in mind that the right for a 
residential property to operate as a short-term rental use has not been reversed. In 
essence the new language tightens and updates definitions that relate to single-family 
residential uses. 
 
The proposed amendments are attached to this report. 
 

PUBLIC PROCESS: 

This is a public hearing to provide opinion and solicit feedback to Town Council and 
possibly make a recommendation to Town Council regarding adoption of these new 
measures.  Notice was placed in the Record Reporter on February 24, 2023 as well as 



P&Z Commission Mtg. 3-13-23    Page 2 of 2 

posted at Town Hall and on the Town’s web site. Town staff has not received any 
comments from the public regarding this amendment.  


































